GTO 2nd Round Questions & Answers
3/08/12

	#
	Category
	Document
	Section/
Subsection
	Question/Comment
	Response

	1
	Company Certifications
	TOR
	L.8.1.3 Page L-11
	The following Company Certification are required by the Contractor Team.” This indicates all certifications are mandatory however, Section M.3.1 indicates that corporate certifications are only 10% of the weighted evaluation for determining if an offeror’s Part 1 proposal is “Acceptable.” Will offerors whose team possesses one of the three certifications be found acceptable in accordance with M.3.1? 
	The criteria in M.3.1 will be used to rate Offeror certifications.  According to the scale in the TOR acceptable is not one of the criteria.  A value will be assessed and clearly those teams that do not possess all the required certifications will receive a lower value. The statement “only those found “acceptable or better has been removed from the TOR.

	2
	Evaluation Criteria
	TOR
	M.3.1  on page M-3
	Section M.3.1 on page M-3 provides Very Good to Excellent, Good and Poor to Fair, as adjectival ratings however, it also states that only those found “Acceptable or better” will be encouraged to continue in the competition. What adjectival ratings will determine an “Acceptable” rating?
	 An overall value rating as specified in Section M.3.1 will be given to each Part 1 offer and the offeror can make a decision whether to proceed to Part 2 based on the assessment of their Part 1 submission.  Please note that Section M.3.1 has been revised to change “Poor to Fair” to “Fair to Poor”. The statement “only those found “acceptable or better has been removed from the TOR.

	3
	Instructions
	TOR
	L-6
	On page L-6 of the TOR, Emerging Technology is included in two places under Part 1A - Emerging Technology Integration (PWS 4.0) (Part 1A #1) and Emerging Technology (PWS 4.0) (Part 1A #2). Does the Government intend for the contractor to respond separately to Emerging Technology Integration under Part 1A#1 and to Emerging Technology Part 1A#2? Please clarify.
	It was GSA’s intent in the CONOPS to group similar service types to the extent possible to help facilitate a combined/summary level contractor response.  The Contractor can choose to address emerging technology jointly for both subsets of Part 1A or singly and cross reference.

	4
	Instructions
	TOR
	L-1
	The instructions require the Submission of Electronic Funds Transfer Information.  Please confirm this information is to be submitted with Part 2.

	L-1 is a FAR Provision prescribed in FAR 32.1110.  Section L instructions do not ask the Contractor to submit Electronic Funds Transfer Information in either part of the proposal response.  However this information will be required of the awardee.

	5
	Instructions
	TOR
	L-2; page L1
	The instructions require submission of an explanation of offeror’s approach to completing the security plan and certification and security authorization. Please confirm that this explanation is to be submitted in Part 2
	Yes, Offerors should submit a description of their approach to completing the security plan and certification and security authorization as a part of the Part 2 proposal submission.  See Section L.9.2.1.4.

	6
	Instructions
CONOPS
	TOR
	L.7.1; page L-6  Part 1 Technical Submission Requirements Table
	Please confirm that under part 1.A, as it relates to PWS Section 2 Task Management, that a limited CONOPS is required but not the Task Order Management Plan (D-01)
	Deliverable D-01 is a Task Order deliverable requirement and not a requirement under Part 2.

	7
	Instructions 
Team descriptions
	TOR
	L.8.1.2.2; page L-11
	Under section L.8.1.2.2 Team Description of the TOR, the Government requests “a summary level description of each company that is part of the team composition by planned task/functional area, including targeted percentages of task allocations for the work to be performed and signed letters of commitment from all significant team members.” Given the page limitation of the Part 1 response, please confirm that the team description should address only significant team members with significant targeted percentages of task allocations and that it is not required to include subcontractors with minor roles in niche areas.
	Yes the statement continues “from all significant team members.”  However, significance should not only be interpreted as percentage of task performance.

	8
	Certifications
	TOR
	H.2.5
Lead Hardware Program Manager
	Under ITIL v2, the highest certification level was Service Manager. Under ITIL v3, the highest level is the Expert. The learning curve between the two certifications is not great. Would GSA change the ITIL v3 certification requirement to ITIL v3 Expert or ITIL v2 Service Manager with ITIL v3 Expert attained within six months?
	GSA will revise Key Personnel requirements as follows:
All Key Personnel are required to have PMI PMP and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. GSA will revise the Key Personnel qualification requirements to allow the technical leads 6 months post award to get ITIL foundation certification and 12 months to obtain PMP certification. The Task Order Project Manager must have the ITIL and PMI (PMP) certifications upon award.  In addition Key Personnel Requirements have been revised as follows:
· Lead Network Program Manager - CISCO Certified Design Professional (CCDP) or CISCO Certified Internetwork Professional (CCIP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Voice/Data Communications Program Manager: Cisco Certified Network Associate Voice (CCNA Voice/Wireless/Routing & Switching) is desirable.
· Lead Systems Program Manager -- Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager:  delete the requirement for Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification and replace with Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) certification (required).

	9
	Key Personnel certifications
	TOR
	H.2.8
Non Key Personnel Requirements
	Page H-6, paragraph 1 states: “All personnel assigned should, within 12 months of being assigned, have ITIL v3 certification at the foundation level.” 
We understand the importance of the certification and the implementation of ITIL at GSA, but there is a cost incurred with the certification. 
(a) Does GSA require that service desk personnel also hold ITIL v3 certification or is the HDI or equivalent certification the only requirement for Tier 1 staff? 
(b) Will GSA permit the contractor to recommend the roles and responsibilities where ITIL v3 foundation is required?
	The instructions at page H-6 are clear: All personnel assigned should, within 12 months of being assigned, have ITIL v3 certification at the foundation level.” 
 
(a) Service Desk personnel shall hold the ITIL v3 foundation level certification within 12 months of contract start in addition to the HDI or equivalent certification.
(b) No. All personnel assigned will have ITIL v3 foundation certification.

	10
	Instructions/ Emerging Technology
	TOR
	L.7.1
Three Part Process
	The table detailing Part 1 Technical Submission Requirements on page L-6 lists associated PWS sections for Part 1A #1 and Part 1A#2. The list of PWS references for both #1 and #2 includes PWS Section 4, Emerging Technology Integration. Was the duplication intentional? 
	GSA has removed the duplication in Section L.7.1 Part 1A: GSA has deleted “4 Emerging Technology Integration.  It remains a part of 1A1.


	11
	Instructions
Demonstrated Experience
	TOR
	L.8.1.2.1
Demonstrated / Relevant Experience
	L.8.1.2.1 states “The Offeror’s response shall include at least one example that demonstrates a minimum of 3 years of experience (duration of the performance) providing large scale cradle-to-grave information technology support services similar in size and scope to the current requirements by the team member (prime or subcontractor) proposed to perform the applicable task/function.   The offeror shall specifically address team experience in operating/monitoring a world-wide infrastructure network, providing information technology incident handling desk support services, and managing a Tier 3 facility supporting at least 17,500 users.” 
Question: We interpret this to mean that one of our team members (prime or subcontractor) must submit a contract  experience example that supports at least 17,500 users and includes support for at least one of the tasks/functions in the PWS (e.g., Client/User Services, Enterprise IT Service Desk, Networking and Communications Services Support, etc.). In addition, the team must submit sufficient experience examples that, combined, demonstrate capability and experience operating/monitoring a world-wide infrastructure network, providing information technology incident handling desk support services, and managing a Tier 3 facility supporting at least 17,500 users. 
(a) Is our interpretation correct?
(b) If not, will the government please provide clarification so that the offeror can comply with GSA’s requirements and provide appropriate examples.
	(a) Yes
(b) N/A

	12
	GFE
	PWS
	1.3
Assumptions and Constraints
	PWS page 4, item 4, appears to provide some conflicting information. The first sentence of item 4 states: “At Contractor provided facilities, the Contractor shall be responsible for providing all resources required to establish connectivity including required security controls with appropriate GSA systems.” The final sentence of item 4 states: “For staff not located in government space, GSA will provide network connectivity and computing equipment (computers, handheld, and mobile computing devices) as determined by the Government and required to duplicate user experience will be provided as GFE.” 
(a) Please verify that GSA will provide as GFE network connectivity and computing equipment (computers, handheld, and mobile computing devices) as determined by the Government and required to duplicate user experience for staff not located in Government space. Or
(b) Provide clarification about what will be provided as GFE in terms of computing equipment and connectivity for staff not located in Government space.
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to clarify Section 1.3 Assumptions and Constraints.  

Section H.5 of the TOR has an updated list of government furnished property/information.  Please be advised a complete list of GFE currently under the GITGO contract is not available at this time but will be provided before Part 2 responses are due. 



	13
	Security
	PWS
	1.3
Assumptions and Constraints
	PWS page 4, item 4, second sentence states: “Contractor provided facilities processing government data shall have an appropriate Authority To Operate based upon a systems high FIPS 199 and FIPS 200 analysis.” 
Question: Obtaining Authority to Operate can be a lengthy process. 
(a) Will GSA grant Interim Authority to Operate while the contractor is obtaining the ATO for its contractor provided facilities?
(b) If the contractor provided facilities have an existing ATO with another government agency, will GSA accept the ATO?
	(a) Yes GSA may grant a conditional/limited ATO based upon a prior SSAE16s, scanning, etc. with allowances for a time period to get a full ATO (maybe 6 months).  However the Offeror must meet minimum security requirements before GSA would put any government data in the Contractor facility.
(b) GSA may accept the ATO; acceptance is contingent upon review of the ATO and corresponding review of the package.

	14
	Facilities
Local Support
	PWS
	3.4
Local Support
	Does GSA have any existing storefronts? If so, where are they located?
	GSA does not have any existing storefronts

	15
	IT ESD statistics
	PWS
	3.4
Local Support
	Typically service desks maintain statistics relative to escalation of incidents to other tiers. Does GSA’s service desk currently maintain statistics for escalated incidents to Tier 2/3 local support by region? If so, will GSA provide those statistics for the past year to help contractors “right size” their local support teams.
	Historical service desk statistics for escalation of incidents to Tier 2/3 local support are not relevant to the service delivery model GSA is seeking under GTO. GSA is seeking a cradle-to-grave approach that tightly integrates service desk and desk-side support functions to provide contiguous end-to-end service delivery with a single point of contact (cradle-to-grave[footnoteRef:1]) for IT support services from deployment through problem resolution and technology replacement. No additional statistics are anticipated at this time. [1:  Cradle-to-Grave is defined as also including interface with third party contracted service providers and industry partners.] 


	16
	Servers
	PWS
	3.6
Server Services
	What is the current uptime of your servers at each of GSA’s data centers? 
	Current Server Uptime at GSA’s data centers: 
Target 99.99%
Actual 99.78%


	17
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section H
Key Personnel
	The numbering in Section H is confusing.  There is no Section H.1, H.3, H.4, H.6, H.8, or H.10 through H.22.  Please confirm that there are no requirements that have been inadvertently omitted from the TOR.
	See Note (top of page) in Section H. The sections map back to the basic contract.  Sections that were not pertinent are omitted.

	18
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2
Due Date
	The current Key Personnel "mandatory requirements" for each position are exceptionally specific in terms of professional & technical expertise, experience, and previous work history. Given that this contract is falling under a SB contract vehicle, we feel that this provides a significant and clear hurdle to any SB and non-incumbent bidder, and is non-competitive. Would the Gov consider removing the specific required qualifications, and replacing with Government’s desired years of experience for all seven (7) Key Personnel?
	All Key Personnel are required to have PMI PMP and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. GSA has revised the Key Personnel qualification requirements to allow the technical leads 6 months post award to get ITIL foundation certification and 12 months to obtain PMP certification. The Task Order Project Manager must have the ITIL and PMI (PMP) certification upon award.  In addition Key Personnel Requirements have been revised as follows:
· Lead Network Program Manager - CISCO Certified Design Professional (CCDP) or CISCO Certified Internetwork Professional (CCIP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Voice/Data Communications Program Manager: Cisco Certified Network Associate Voice (CCNA Voice/Wireless/Routing & Switching) is desirable.
· Lead Systems Program Manager -- Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager:  delete the requirement for Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification and replace with Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) certification (required).

	19

	Instructions/
Extension
	TOR
	L
Phase 1 CONOPs Response
	We respectfully request a 1 week extension to allow for our Small Business team to prepare a comprehensive CONOPS and response that can support the Government in achieving its stated goals and objectives. 
	GSA is not considering an extension at this time. The CONOPS is not expected to be comprehensive; but a limited summary level CONOPS

	20
	Instructions/ Emerging technology
	TOR
	L.7.1
Page Count
	The Government’s instructed response requirements are duplicative – both CONOPS Technical Areas 1 and 2 require responses to PWS element 4.0, Emerging Technology Integration Support. Because of the tight page count limitations, we request that this requirement be removed from one of the two CONOPS areas to eliminate redundancy in our response. 
	[bookmark: _GoBack]GSA has removed the duplication in Section L.7.1 Part 1A1: GSA has deleted 4 Emerging Technology Integration.  It remains a part of 1A2.


	21
	Instructions/ Page limitations
	TOR
	L.7.1
Proposal Instructions
	We respectfully request the page count limitation for the Phase 1 response be increased to 40 pages, to allow for a comprehensive discussion at the macro-level of all the required PWS elements, an acceptable detail of an overarching CONOPS for the program as a whole, as well as inclusion of all applicable demonstrated experience from across our team.
	The CONOPS is not expected to be comprehensive; but a limited summary level CONOPS Please see Section L.7.1, Part 1.  A page count extension is not considered necessary at this time.

	22
	Instructions/ Page limitations
	TOR
	L.8 and L.9
Part 2 Submission Contents 
	Please clarify if foldout pages are acceptable.  If so, please clarify how they will be counted toward the page limitations.
	Foldouts up to size (8 ½ by 14) are allowable and will be counted as 2 pages. 

	23
	Instructions /
PDF files
	TOR
	L.9.1
Project Staffing Plan Table
	Please consider allowing proposal submission using Adobe pdf to ensure that files are not affected by different user settings.
	Yes PDF files will be accepted.  However the price proposal should be submitted in an Excel spreadsheet.

	24
	Instructions/ Key Personnel
	TOR
	L.9.3.2.1 and Section J, Attachment I
Number of Contract Modifications
	In the answer to question 125 from the pre-solicitation conference, the Government indicated that “The requirement to provide names of all Non-Key Personnel in the Staffing Plan will be removed from the instructions.”  However, the requirement remains in the final TOR.  
a.  Please clarify if Offerors are required to provide names for non-key personnel (or to indicated “to be determined”).
b.  If the requirement to provide names remains, please clarify how the Government will evaluate staffing plans that do not provide names of non-key personnel.
	GSA has revised L.9.3.2.1 to remove references to personnel names.  The staffing plan shall include skill sets and full time equivalent positions. L.9.3.2 is revised to include the following:

“Include the number of anticipated FTE staff proposed by labor category, skill set, and task; noting security clearance requirements, as applicable.”  

	25
	TOR Attachment F
	 TOR Attachment F
	General
	We respectfully request that this requirement be deleted from Attachment F. A general number may be misrepresentative. For example, a modification is often required to exercise an option year or to add incremental funding. 
	No change will be made to Attachment F. Offeror’s are not obligated to explain the contract modification number unless they feel it is worth noting, but should be advised that the page limit will not be increased.  If the Government has questions regarding the number of modifications, a clarifying question may be asked at the appropriate phase of proposal evaluation or they may inquire about contract modifications during the reference checks.

	26
	Instructions/ Transition plans
	TOR
	Section F, Pages F-3 and F-4, Table 2-GTO Deliverables 

	Please confirm due dates for D-04 (Transition-In Plan) and D-05 Transition-Out Plan.
	The due dates for D-03 and D-04 were reversed.  This has  been corrected.

	27
	Instructions/ Emerging Technology
	TOR
	TOR Section L.7.1, page L-6  

	Part 1A, subsection 1 includes “Emerging Technology Integration” and subsection 2 includes “Emerging Technology,”.  PWS reference for both is to section 4.0. Please clarify what is to be included in each of these subsections?
	GSA has removed the duplication in Section L.7.1 Part 1A1: GSA has deleted 4 Emerging Technology Integration.  It remains a part of 1A2.


	28
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.8.1.1, Pages L-9 and L-10  

	Bullet items 1 and 2 do not match the table in L.7.1.  For subsection 1, page L-9 specifies EITM whereas page L-6 specifies EIT Support as Needed. For subsection 2 page L-6 includes Asset Management and Emerging Technology whereas these two areas are not included on page L-10.  Please clarify?

	Bullet items 1 and 2 are deleted from L.8.1.1.  Offerors should focus their responses on the information provided in the Table in Section 7.1 Part 1 Technical Submission requirements.

	29
	Instructions / PDF files
	TOR
	General Proposal Instructions 

	MSWord files sometimes display differently on different computers, and are susceptible to inadvertent changes. For these reasons, we recommend that the government permit submission of Parts 1 and 2 in PDF as an option.  Will this be permissible?
	Yes PDF files will be accepted.  However the price proposal should be submitted  in an Excel spreadsheet

	30
	Instructions/ Pricing
	TOR
	Section L.10.1.c; page 18
	The last sentence in the paragraph states that “The back-up documentation shall detail the labor categories to be used, labor hours proposed by category, any material and equipment costs, and a total cost breakdown (to include a summary total for each cost component, e.g., labor, overhead, or G&A).” This requirement for a total cost breakdown appears to be in conflict with the government’s response to question 178 which is as follows:

Question 178. The Government has asked for a total cost breakdown including cost components of labor, overhead and G&A. Since this information was given at the time the Alliant SB contract was competed and the rates contained within the contract have already been determined fair and reasonable, will the Government consider amending this to be a breakdown of labor hours, Alliant or discounted Alliant rate, material and equipment costs and any allocable G&A/M&H on this equipment? Answer. Yes.  This will be changed to reflect only the Alliant rates and discounts.  There is no expectation of material costs so T&M CLINs are being changed to LH.
Please clarify this apparent inconsistency.
	Section L.10.1c has been revised.

	31
	Instructions/ Pricing
	TOR
	Section L.10.
	The Price Proposal Instructions do not specify that Alliant Small Business (ASB) labor rates are to be used to price Labor Hour CLINS.  Does the offeror have a choice of using either (a) its approved Alliant Small Business labor rates (with discounts) to price Labor Hour CLINS (with no requirement for a total cost breakdown), or (b) labor rates developed specifically for this task order and showing a total cost breakdown of the rates developed?
	No, Contractors can only use Alliant Small Business Labor Rates.

	32
	Instructions/
Alliant template
	TOR
	Section B.5/Page No. B-1
	This Section states in part, “… GSA-issued Task Orders: Orders in excess of $13.3 million/year are capped at $100,000 per order.” 
Please clarify the intent of this language.
	The Alliant Small Business Task Order Request guidance requires Section B.5, which  limits the contact access fee on any GSA issued Task Orders exceeding $13.3 million at $100,000 per order.

	33
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section B
	The clauses are not consecutively numbered. Please clarify. 
	See Note (top of page) in Section B. The sections map back to the basic Alliant SB contract.  Sections that were not pertinent are omitted.

	34
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section B.12 and B.12.3, Page B-5, and B-6, and Initial Q&A 173 and 269 and 274, Page 54 
	A Travel CLIN and ODC CLIN were added and listed as NTE but no dollar amount. Per the Q&A a NTE amount should be provided by the Government. Will the Government please provide these NTE amounts for each contract year?  
	Yes, they will be provided at award and may to some extent be based on the proposed solution selected.  The information is not pertinent to the offer at this time.  If there are specific assumptions or expectations about travel or ODCs as they relate to any single offer that should be identified in the price proposal.

	35
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section B.12, p. B-3
	Should CLIN 00009’s description read, “Networking and Communications Services Support PWS 3.7” not “3.7.1” in order to align with the PWS?
	Yes, correction made

	36
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section B.12, p. B-2
	Will CLIN 00005 always be paired with one of its quantity CLINs 5AA-5AF? If not, what call volume is CLIN 00005 expected to cover?
	Yes; CLIN 5 has several pricing levels so the identification of the service/task applicable to that CLIN is at the 00005 level.  However please be advised that contractors have the opportunity to propose a different CLIN structure.

	37
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section B.12, p. B-3
	What is the purpose of charging Directory Management Services on a Labor Hour basis? Is it intended that routine tasks, such as account creations and deletions be part of core services on a FFP basis while one time or intermittent tasks, such as merging or reconciliation of disparate databases be LH?
	These are only recommendations, primarily based on the experience from the previous GITGO contract.  The contractor is at liberty to change the contract type and propose a structure that supports their innovative solution.

	38
	Instructions
	PWS
	PWS 2.0#3
H.2
	The PWS refers to a Task Order Manager. TOR H.2 refers to a Task Order Program Manager. Which title would the Government prefer we use
	TOR Attachment A, Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to match the title in the TOR.

	39
	Transition
	PWS
	PWS 2.12 Transition-In
	The PWS states “GSA’s anticipates a transition period that will range from a minimum of 60 calendar days to a maximum of 120 days” Does this apply only to onboarding/transition or does it apply to the entire time period encompassing onboarding/transition and stabilization?
	TOR Attachment, A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to clarify Section 2.12.1 Transition-In.

GSA expects the 60-120 days transition period to encompass transition and stabilization.

	40
	Asset Mgmt
	PWS
	PWS 3.8 Asset management and inventory management support
	The requirement in the numbered paragraph beginning “1) The Contractor shall provide complete life-cycle configuration management services” appears to belong in PWS 4.2 Configuration management. Please clarify.
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to clarify the requirements under Section 3.8 Asset Management and Inventory Management Support.

	41
	Networking
	PWS
	PWS 4 Networks/Communications Support (1) p. 21
	Will GSA provide a baseline inventory of all networking and telecommunications hardware and software assets or will the GTO contractor be required to perform that baseline inventory?
	The GITGO contractor performed a physical inventory and reconciliation of all IT assets between Oct – Nov 2011. The GTO contractor will be required to validate the IT asset inventory.

	42
	Networking
	PWS
	PWS 4 Networks/Communications Support (5) p. 21
	How many BMC servers are there, where are they located, and what hardware, operating systems, and platforms do they have?
	BMC servers statistics:   Physical servers: 73 - across 6 regions: Virtual servers: 82 - across 11 regions.  The new virtual instances are now housed out of the two data centers, R6 and Chantilly. There is plan to move all legacy virtual servers to the data centers in the next couple of years. Locations are delineated in Attachment 02 Public Building Services - building with automated systems.  The hardware, operating systems and platforms vary by region and location.  

	43
	BMC
	PWS
	PWS 4 Networks/Communications Support (5) p. 21
	What are the BMC applications? What versions? Who currently supports them? What warranty and/or maintenance agreements exist, when do they expire and will GSA be renewing them?
	The BMC applications are outside the scope of the GTO contract.  PBS supports the BMC applications.  However the following information is provided: 

Main applications developers are provided below.  This is not an exhaustive list.  There may be additional developers: 
         Automated Logic Corporation
         Electrical Equipment Co. 
         Enviro-Management & Research, Inc. 
         Honeywell
         Johnson Controls Inc.
         Lutron Electronics Co., Inc
         Quadlogic Controls Co.
         Quark Communications, Inc.
         Schneider Electric
         SensorSwitch
         Siemens
         TRANE
         Tridium, Inc.
 
Support
The servers are backed up and supported by PBS, but the applications and the version upgrades are the responsibility of the 3rd party vendors (not GTO). The maintenance agreement for the application software is with the vendors and varies by project.  It is based on the contractual agreement between the buildings management group and the 3rd party vendors (not GTO). PBS will determine if the warranty and/or maintenance agreements will be renewed.

 Operating Systems
Windows 2008 64 bit is recommended, but some applications still require Windows 2003. 

	44
	Training
	PWS
	PWS 9.22 Training
	Historically, approximately how many new users per month requiring one-on-one training for the standard suite of applications (email, VPN, CITRIX, softphone, etc.) has GSA experienced?  Is this expected to increase or decrease substantially? 
	In 2011, GSA had approximately 2400 new users for the year (New users are defined as new GSA employees). This number is expected to remain constant over the next five years.  Please be advised that when new applications are rolled out new users could be defined as the entire GSA customer base.


	45
	Training
	PWS
	PWS 9.22 Training
	Is one-on-one training expected for new users at remote sites (for example OCONUS) that are not within the commuting range of local support?
	This varies by region. In some regions, technicians are sent to remote sites. In other regions, the training is done remotely. Remote training is the prefer method. The same holds true for OCONUS.  See also See 3.4.2 Constraints for Local Support bullet #2 and #5.


	46
	Training
	PWS
	PWS 9.2
2 Training
	Is one-on-one training via remote shared desktop where available acceptable?
	Remote shared desktop training is acceptable in most case, but there will be circumstances where travel will be necessary.  See also 3.4.2 Constraints for Local Support bullet # 5.

	47
	GSA locations
	TOR/
As-Is-
	F.4 PLACE OF PERFORMANCE
	This section states, “GSA locations are identified in Section J, Attachment B (As-Is-Environment).” While Attachment B mentions several GSA locations it does not appear to be comprehensive. Please advise as to where GSA provided a complete list of place of performance locations or please provide.
	Reference TOR Attachment B As-Is Environment Section 3. Locations: Attachment 02 Public Building Services
Attachment 03 GSA Customer Locations
Attachment 11 Data Center Locations
 NOTE: There are 2 sets of attachments: One are the attachments to the TOR, one of which is the As Is Document.  In addition, there are attachments to the As Is Document.

	48
	Past Performance
	TOR
	Attachment K
	In Attachment K Past Performance Questionnaire, the Government states, “If you prefer, you may provide the blank survey to your reference and instruct them to return electronically only to denise.young@gsa.gov and lydia.dawson@gsa.gov.”

However, in the questionnaire form, there is a line for the POC to sign. As many of the POCs do not have electronic signature, and since the email is coming directly from the Government POC’s email outbox, would the POC keying their name into this field count as a “signature”?
	Attachment K, the Past Performance Questionnaire, is the survey instrument that will be used to collect past performance information during evaluation in Part 2.  It is provided for information so offerors will know the questions to be asked of the references.  In addition, at the offeror’s option, the survey instrument can be provided directly to the references identified under Attachment F, Demonstrated Experience  Any surveys provided directly  to customers  should be submitted back directly to GSA once completed, as instructed in Attachment K.  GSA will perform reference checks using the contact information provided in Attachment F if Attachment K is not received by the closing date for Part 2 submission.  Note: The response date has been corrected to reflect the closing date for Part 2 in lieu of Part 1.

The Past Performance Questionnaire has been revised to indicate that a typed name in the signature block is acceptable for an electronic signature if the name on the form corresponds with the email of the sender. 

	49
	Past Performance
	TOR
	Attachment K
	In attachment K Past Performance Reference Sheets, the Government states, “Any electronic submission should be clearly marked as Performance Survey – GSA GTO in the subject line and must be received by the date and time for the submission of the Part 1 proposal response.”

However, In the TOR Section L.9.4, Part 2C, Past Performance Review, the Government discusses the past performance survey, implying that the survey is due with Part 2, on May 10.

Can you please clarify the due date for the past performance survey?
	Any Past Performance References should be submitted with Part 2 directly to GSA by date and time of proposal submission, May 10th.  The attachment has been corrected to reflect this change.

	50
	Question submissions
	TOR
	L.6.3 Submission of Affirmation of Interest and Questions
	Part 2 Questions Time Period state, “Questions must be received by Thursday, April 112 (3:00 PM EST)”  In order to begin work on Part 2, may we begin submitting as early as March 15? 
	Yes, questions can be submitted in advance but must be received by 3:00 pm EST on April 12th. Note, however, that early submission will not result in an early response.  Responses to all questions will be submitted approximately one week after April 12th.

	51
	Instructions
	TOR
	TOR L7.1 Three Part Process Part 1, p. L-6
  Technical Submission Requirements 
	The requirements in Part 1A of the Part 1 Submission Requirements table do not match the submission requirements defined in sections L.8.1.1. 

For example: 
· Part 1A includes additional sections not referenced in L.8.1.1 such as PWS 1 (Overview), 2 (Task Order Management), As Needed Capabilities, and 10 (Optional Services). 
· Part 1A1 includes additional sections not referenced in L.8.1.1 such as PWS 5 (EIT Infrastructure Support of as needed capabilities) and the order of how the government wants responses is different.
· Part 1A2  includes additional sections not referenced in L.8.1.1 such as PWS 3.8, (asset management), PWS 4.0 (Emerging Technology)

Section M.3.1 is not consistent with the first row of Table 7.1.1 Part 1A but it does align with Parts 1A1 and 1A2. 

Please clarify which set of instructions offerors need to follow and clarify which components of Section L.7.1 will be evaluated. 
	Bullet items 1 and 2 are deleted from L.8.1.1.  Offerors should focus their responses on the information provided in the Table in Section 7.1 Part 1 Technical Submission requirements.

Part 1A1 has been  revised to delete any reference to Emerging Technology Integration; Part 1A2 has been revised to add the words “Technology Integration” to Emerging Technology. 

M.3.has been revised.

	52
	Instructions
	TOR
	L.7.1 part 1 technical submission requirements table Part 1A
L.8.1	PART 1 SUBMISSION CONTENTS L.8.1.1 PART 1A - LIMITED CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
M.3.1.1 Factor 1A – limited CONOPS
	L.7.1 includes PWS 3.6 Server Services which includes two subsections: PWS 3.6.1 server infrastructure support and PWS 3.6.2 data center support. M.3.1.1 also lists server services implying data center support. L.8.1.1 includes “Offeror’s proposed approach to manage Servers” but does not mention data center support. Does the Government want offerors to provide their methodology for data center support in the limited concept of operations?
	L.8.1.1 has been revised.  Offerors shall use the instructions in the revised table in L.7.1 for Part 1 Technical Submission requirements.



	53
	Instructions
	TOR
	L.7.1 part 1 technical submission requirements table Part 1A
L.8.1	PART 1 SUBMISSION CONTENTS L.8.1.1 PART 1A - LIMITED CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
M.3.1.1 Factor 1A – Limited CONOPS
	L.7.1 includes EIT Support as Needed and PWS reference 5 (EIT Infrastructure Support of as Needed Capabilities). M.3.1.1 also lists EIT support as needed. These topics do not appear in L.8.1.1. Does the Government intend for the offeror to provide our methodology for PWS section 5 EIT Infrastructure support as needed in the limited concept of operations or does the Government only want offerors to provide methodology for the topics listed following the direction in L.8.1.1 “focus their responses on the following functionality:”
	L.8.1.1 has been revised.  Offerors shall use the instructions in the revised table in L.7.1 for Part 1 Technical Submission requirements.

	54
	Instructions/ submission
Pages
	TOR
	L.7.1 part 1 technical submission requirements table Part 1A
L.8.1	PART 1 SUBMISSION CONTENTS L.8.1.1 PART 1A - LIMITED CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
M.3.1.1 Factor 1A – Limited CONOPS
	Section L and M appear to require 17 topics to be addressed in 15 pages leaving less than one page per topic. We suggest the government consider reducing the number of topics or increasing the page space or both so offerors can provide more than a cursory response.
1. Overview
1. Task order management
1. PBS data center O&M in optional services
1. BMC support services in optional services
1. Transition to cloud support services in optional services
1. EIT Management 
1. Server infrastructure support in server services
1. Data center support in server services
1. Networking and Communications 
1. Emerging Technology Integration
1. Configuration management in emerging technology integration
1. EIT Support as Needed 
1. Client/User Services 
1. Enterprise IT Service Desk
1. Local Support 
1. Directory Management 
1. Asset Management
	Contactors can use the 30 page count to their best advantage.  There is no stipulation from GSA that Part 1A and 1B are 15 pages each.

	55
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.9.1, Page L-12 
	Part 2 lists a submission deadline of 3:00PM EDT Friday May 10, 2012. However May 10, 2012 is a Thursday. Which is the correct date of submission; Thursday May 10, 2012 or Friday May 11, 2012?  
	The submission date is corrected to Thursday May 10, 2012.

	56
	Instructions
Pricing
	TOR
	Section L.10.1c, L.10.1d and L.10.2, Page L-18 and Initial Q&A 178, 185, and 280, Page 48 and 49
	The Price Supporting Documentation (Tab C) includes a request for a total cost breakdown and the Instructions in L.10.2 ask for LH CLINs to identify costs by cost element.

The Subcontractor Supporting Documentation (Tab D) also includes a request for the same total cost breakdown and DCAA contact information along with sealed packages for proprietary information. 

In the Q&A 178, 185 and 280 the Government indicated that it would remove the requirement in the final TOR for identification of individual cost elements and evaluate the prices substantiated by the ASB Loaded Hourly Labor Rates as long as they do not exceed the rates in the Basic Contract and offer discounts. 

However these requirements still exist in the final TOR. Will the Government remove them as indicated in the Q&A? 
	Section L.10.PRICE PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS have been revised to remove references to cost breakdown and cost elements


 

	57
	Instructions
	TOR
	M.3.1 PART 1- ADVISORY TECHNICAL EVALUATION
L.8.1	PART 1 SUBMISSION CONTENTS
	M.3.1 states “The Government will evaluate Part 1 responses based on the clarity and completeness of the approach, the capabilities of the team, and the degree to which the response meets the requirements of the TOR (Section L.7.1)”. However, L.8.1 specifies the submission contents. Does the Government want the offeror’s proposal contents to comply with Section L.7.1 or Section L.8.1, keeping in mind that these two sections specify different content?
	Bullet items 1 and 2 are deleted from L.8.1.1.  Offerors should focus their responses on the information provided in the revised Table in Section L. 7.1 Part 1 Technical Submission requirements.

Part 1A1 has been revised to delete any reference to Emerging Technology Integration; Part 1A2 has been revised to add the words “Technology Integration” to Emerging Technology. 

M.3.1 has been revised.

	58
	Infrastructure
	PWS
	General
	What is the maximum MB amount that GSA email is able to accept? Some of the files that will be emailed for both part1 and part2 can get very large.
	50 MB

	59
	Key personnel
	TOR
	TOR GSA-IO-12-0797 Part 1:

	Key Personnel – the certification requirement for personnel designated as “key” seems overly specific and restrictive. The PMP and ITIL requirements seem to be within reasonable expectations, but the specific individual certification requirements such as CCDP, CCIP, CCNA, CCIE and MCITP are unusually and unnecessarily restrictive and burdensome. GSA can successfully accomplish the functions listed in the TOR with contractor leadership who have either comparable experience or education such as degrees in Computer Science, Engineering, etc. Can GSA modify the specific certification requirements to permit comparable certifications, demonstrated experience and/or education?  
	GSA has revised Key Personnel requirements as follows:
All Key Personnel are required to have PMI PMP and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. GSA has revised the Key Personnel qualification requirements to allow the technical leads 6 months post award to get ITIL foundation certification and 12 /18 months to obtain PMP certification. The Task Order Project Manager must have the ITIL and PMI (PMP) certification upon award.  In addition Key Personnel Requirements have been revised as follows:
· Lead Network Program Manager - CISCO Certified Design Professional (CCDP) or CISCO Certified Internetwork Professional (CCIP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Voice/Data Communications Program Manager: Cisco Certified Network Associate Voice (CCNA Voice/Wireless/Routing & Switching) is desirable.
· Lead Systems Program Manager -- Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager:  delete the requirement for Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification and replace with Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) certification (required).

	60
	
	PWS
	
	Is there data regarding service volumes per major office?  For example, service request volumes at regional offices with over 100 users.
	Additional information is provided in new Attachment 47 Ticket Volume by Region 

	61
	
	PWS
	
	What GSA training materials require protection? For example, if training materials were cloud hosted, would the system have to go through a full C&A?
	The use of the existing GSA tools, such as Google Docs, is recommended to eliminate the security requirements.  However, for any data (including training material) hosted in a cloud environment, FIPS 199 impact analysis needs to be performed to determine the impact level of the data. Security controls commensurate to the data impact level must be implemented by the cloud information system and assessed. However, the training data would be categorized as FIPS 199 Low. 



	62
	
	PWS
	
	Please provide clarification on the special events.  Specifically, scope information regarding the events and GSAs expectation for how they will be priced.  Is it permissible that they are on a separate optional CLIN?
	The PWS and TOR references to special events, conferences and special projects have been revised and separate CLINs have been identified. 

	63
	
	PWS
	
	What restrictions are there for remote login software?
	For "remote access" to the network GSA requires the use of VPN and/or Citrix. For remote technical support and "remote control" of systems/workstations, we are limited to CA Remote Control and DRAC based access.

	64
	
	PWS
	
	Will GSA consider investigations from a commercial source for adjudication?
	No, GSA will not consider investigations from a commercial source for adjudication.

	65
	
	PWS
	
	What number of clearances does GSA believe can be processed during the transition period? Is GSA willing to work with the winning organization in attaining a large number of personnel clearances?
	Once an employee’s data has been CORRECTLY entered into the e-QIP system, if they already have a clearance, it takes approximately 2 weeks for adjudication. The time frame is approximately 2 months if the employee does not have an active clearance
For more information, click on: http://www.opm.gov/e-qip/ 
Yes, GSA will work with the winning contractor to the extent possible.
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	TOR
	
	Ref L.7.1.2.2, would GSA expand upon the statement, “allows the Prime Contractor to meet the GSA Alliant Small business contractual requirements”?  Is this referring to Limitations on subcontracting?
	The latest version of the TOR does not contain L.7.1.2.2.  GSA provided the following response to L.7.1.2.2 in the previous Q&A.

“The Alliant Small Business contract requires that the prime contractor perform at least 50% of the cost of the contract incurred with its own employees.”

	67
	
	PWS
	
	The answer to question 166 states that the Security Operation Center is managed by another contractor.  Would GSA explain how the responsibilities of the GTO security team are different from those of the other security group?
	The third-party Security Operations Center (SOC) will be a Managed Trusted Internet Protocol Services (MTIPS) SOC, as provided for in the Networx contract.  The MTIPS SOC will be responsible for GSA's perimeter security fabric (i.e., Internet facing security).  The MTIPS SOC will keep GSA informed of security concerns associated with GSA's Internet traffic, which passes through a Trusted Internet Connection (TIC) portal.  The EIOC and GTO security team will work with the MTIPS SOC to handle such security concerns, as provided for in the GTO Performance Work Statement (i.e., "support security services").  

Besides working with the MTIPS SOC in this manner, GTO security responsibilities will encompass GSA's internal network security fabric designed to identify malicious traffic traversing the GSA Intranet and not visible by the GSA perimeter security fabric or the MTIPS SOC, as well as other system security support specified within the GTO Task Order Request. 

	68
	General
	
	General
	If the prime contractor is down selected in Part 1 with a recommendation not to proceed – is that prime eligible to bid on the QA/QC Contract?

	Part 1 is advisory not a down select.  Offerors who do not submit a bid for Part 2 will not have an organizational conflict of interest that would prohibit a bid on the GTO PMO.


	69
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section B.2
	Since bidders can provide a price model other than that provided in the TOR, please explain how the pricing evaluation will be conducted.  Spefically, how will GSA compare the various models as “best value” in its price determination?
	Refer to Section M.4.2 Best Value Award.

	70
	Transition
	TOR
	Section F, Table 2
	This implies that the current NOC will remain in operation for some period of time during the GTO contract.  Can GSA specify what the anticpated timeframe would be, and what are the drivers that impact that schedule?
	GSA does not have a schedule at this time.

	71
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.6, LEAD SYSTEMS PROGRAM MANAGER 

	Can the offeror provide personnel with certification of either : Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) in leau of Microsoft Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) in support of this requirement?

	Yes see response to #18 for further clarification Key Personnel requirements. 
Key Personnel are required to have PMI PMP and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. GSA has revised the Key Personnel qualification requirements to allow the technical leads 6 months post award to get ITIL foundation certification and 12 /18 months to obtain PMP certification. The Task Order Project Manager must have the ITIL and PMI (PMP) certification upon award.  In addition Key Personnel Requirements have been revised as follows:
· Lead Network Program Manager - CISCO Certified Design Professional (CCDP) or CISCO Certified Internetwork Professional (CCIP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Voice/Data Communications Program Manager: Cisco Certified Network Associate Voice (CCNA Voice/Wireless/Routing & Switching) is desirable.
· Lead Systems Program Manager -- Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager:  delete the requirement for Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification and replace with Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) certification (required).

	72
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.7, LEAD INFORMATION ASSURANCE/SECURITY PROGRAM MANAGER

	Can the offeror provide personnel with certification of either : Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE) or Microsoft Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) ) in support of this requirement?

	Yes see response to #18 for further clarification Key Personnel requirements. 
Key Personnel are required to have PMI PMP and ITIL v3 Foundation Certification. GSA has revised the Key Personnel qualification requirements to allow the technical leads 6 months post award to get ITIL foundation certification and 12 /18 months to obtain PMP certification. The Task Order Project Manager must have the ITIL and PMI (PMP) certification upon award.  In addition Key Personnel Requirements have been revised as follows:
· Lead Network Program Manager – CISCO Certified Design Professional (CCDP) or CISCO Certified Internetwork Professional (CCIP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Voice/Data Communications Program Manager: Cisco Certified Network Associate Voice (CCNA Voice/Wireless/Routing & Switching) is desirable.
· Lead Systems Program Manager – Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification is desirable.
· Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager:  delete the requirement for Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP) certification and replace with Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) certification (required).

	73
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section H.7
	The 6th bullet (titled System Security) discusses the role of a Contractor Risk Manager. It is our assumption that this is not a required position for the GTO contract as this position is not defined in any of the Key Personnel or non-key Personnel requirements in the TOR   Is that correct? 
	Section H.2 Key Personnel in the TOR states: “The following are the minimum personnel who shall be designated as “key”.  The contractor shall propose appropriate labor categories for these positions.  The Government does not intend to dictate the composition of the ideal team to perform the task order.”    How each Contractor selects positions to perform all the work including risk management is at the contractor’s discretion? 

	74
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.1 and H.2.4
	Section H.2 includes a blanket statement that all Key Personnel are required to have PMP certifications.  However, only the positions descriptions for Task Order Program Manager and Lead Help Desk Program Manager specify PMI certification and other Key Personnel Position Descriptions do not require PMI certification. Can you please confirm that PMI certification is required only for these two key positions per TOR.
	All key personnel must have PMP.

	75
	Instructions / Demonstrated Experience
	TOR
	Section L.8.1.2.1
	For every Demonstrated Experience that we provide in Part 1, do we need to provide a past performance survey (Attachment K)?
	Attachment K, the Past Performance Questionnaire, is the survey instrument that will be used to collect past performance information during evaluation in Part 2.  It is provided for information so offerors will know the questions to be asked of the references.  In addition, at the offeror’s option, the survey instrument can be provided directly to the references identified under Attachment F, Demonstrated Experience  Any surveys provided directly  to customers  should be submitted back directly to GSA once completed, as instructed in Attachment K.  GSA will perform reference checks using the contact information provided in Attachment F if Attachment K is not received by the closing date for Part 2 submission.  Note: The response date has been corrected to reflect the closing date for Part 2 in lieu of Part 1.


	76
	Instructions/
Past Performance
	TOR
	Section L.9.4
	What is the cutoff date for submitting the past performance survey since they are being submitted directly from our customers and evaluated in Part 2?
	The cutoff date is May 10, 2012, the submission date for the Part 2 submission.  Attachment K has been revised to indicate the new date.

	77
	Local Support
	PWS
	Section 1.3: Assumptions and Constraints
	: # 7) OCONUS European Support Personnel – due to Status of Forces Agreement Identification (SOFA) requirements in Europe (Stuttgart, Germany), two GSA Full Time Equivalent (FTE) personnel currently provide local on-site/ desk-side information technology support in Europe.  GSA would prefer Contractor support for these services.

PWS: Section 3.4.2 Constraints # 5. International Support Personnel – Due to Status of Forces Agreement Identification (SOFA), requirements in Europe GSA FTEs (2) currently provide local on-site desk side information technology support in Europe. Contractors are encouraged to provide a contractor solution for all OCONUS local support.
1. Question: Is on-site support currently provided in other OCONUS regions such as the Pacific Rim and if so what is GSA’s intention for GTO contractor support?  

	Yes, GTO must provide local support in all locations except Europe.  Contractor support personnel for Europe is desirable.  

	78
	Instructions
	TOR 
	Reference L.7.1, page L-6 and L.8.1.1
PART 1A

	In the following table in L.7.1, it is stated to address handling  Client/User Services, Enterprise IT Service Desk, Local Support, Directory Management, Asset Management, and Emerging Technology,
L8.1.1, states to provide and “Offeror’s proposed approach to handling Client User Services, Directory
	Bullet items 1 and 2 are deleted from L.8.1.1.  Offerors should focus their responses on the information provided in the Table in Section L.7.1 Part 1 Technical Submission requirements.

Part 1A1 thas been revised to delete any reference to Emerging Technology Integration; Part 1A2 has been revised to add the words “Technology Integration” to Emerging Technology. 

	79
	Instructions
	PWS / EIT Service Desk
	Management Services, Local Support
	Management Services, Local Support and an EIT Service Desk such as described in the requirement”.
Question:  Can GSA please clarify if offerors should address handling “Asset Management” and “Emerging Technology” in their response to Part 1.A.2?
	Emerging Technology is referenced in 1A1 and 1A2.  The reference to Emerging Technology in 1A2 has been removed.  Asset Management is addressed in 1A2.

	80
	PBS Data Center
	AS IS/ PBS
	Page 38, Para 10.2.2
	How much is the current storage capacity of Netapps storage systems and any other storage?
	The NetApp storage system capacity has 400TB useable.  The EMC is approximately 340TB useable.

	81
	Configuration Mgmt
	PWS
	Page 32, Para 4.2
	Is PWS section 4.2 configuration management sub section of 4.0?
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to correct the subsection.

	82
	Configuration Mgmt
	PWS
	Page 30 - 32
	In PWS section 4 Emerging Technology Integration Support, there is a heading ‘4.2 Configuration Management’ included.  Is 4.2 out of place?  Or is there a numbering error.  CM does not make sense in this section.
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to correct the subsection.

	83
	
	AS IS
	Page 16, Para 7.2.1.2
	Who owns the Automated Call Distribution (ACD) system?  How is it integrated? Does GSA own the Toll Free Number for the Service Desk?  Or is it owned by the GITGO vendor?
	The Automated Call Distribution (ACD) system and solution is contractor furnished. The toll free number for the Enterprise IT Service Desk is owned by the GITGO contractor and the toll free numbers for the VIP Hotline and Help Desks (e.g. OCFO, PBS National Apps, etc.) are owned by GSA. 

	84
	Pricing
	TOR
	
	Section B.12 Pricing, pg B-5: What is the meaning of the Note?  Will GSA negotiate the FFP as scope is expanded to accommodate new O&M requirements?
	As requirements become more stable tasks/CLINS may move from Labor Hour to Fixed Price. Additional tasks or projects may be either FP or LH and that determination will be made at the time the work is scheduled based upon the stability of the requirements at the time.

	85
	
	TOR
	Section C, pg C-1
	There appears to be missing text at the end of the statement “In addition, the following applies:”?
	The statement has been removed from the Section C.1 of the TOR.  It appropriately belongs as the introduction to Section D. Page breaks have been inserted.


	86
	Deliverables
	TOR
	Section F.5, pg F-1:
	There seems to be differences on the specified work products specified in this section and those in the PWS 3.6.1.3. For instance, we don't find deliverable D-17 of TOR F.5  in PWS 3.6.1.3, and we found unmatched D-9 description between TOR and PWS. In the TOR specification: D-09 is listed as Deployment Roster (PWS 9.1.1.4) but it is in PWS 3.6.1.3, D-9 is listed as MAC Project Plans (D-9)?   Can GSA please clarify the differences?
	Deliverable # 17 Server Availability Reports is duplicated by W-41 Server Availability reports and has been deleted from the TOR.
Deliverable # 09 Deployment Roster is correct.  In PWS section 3.6.1.3 Mac Project Plans is actually W-09


	87
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2, Key Personnel, pg H-1
	Will the government allow contractors to propose key personnel that satisfy certification requirements based on year of equivalent industry experience?
	Contractors should review the modifications to Section H.2 Key Personnel. However experience is not the same thing as certification.


	88
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.8, Non-Key Personnel, pg H-6
	Do the requirement for PMP certification in accordance with the PMI PMBOK 4th Edition apply to Key Personnel Program Manager or other Project Managers? In either case, can the PMP certification be held under a previous version of the PMBOK, if the certification is current?
	Yes
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	TOR
	Section H.2.9, H.3, H.4, pg H-6
	These sections appear to be missing.  Where can they be found?
	See the Note on page H-1 at the top of the page. The sections map back to the basic Alliant SB contract.  Sections that were not pertinent are omitted.

	90
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1, pg L-6:
	Since the scope of Part 1 response has been expanded, will GSA increase the number of pages for the Part 1 response?
	No GSA will not increase the page limits for the Part 1 response.  Round 1 Q&A’s did not materially expand the scope of the Part 1 response. Most changes were to correct inconsistencies between Sections L and M.  It is still a limited CONOPS of the Offeror’s approach to providing the required services with emphasis on specified sections of the PWS.

	91
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1, page L-6:
	Is there any difference between 1A.1 and 1A.2 groupings?  If so, what's the rationale that government grouped EIT Infrastructure Support of as Needed capabilities in Part 1A.1 vs. Part 1A.2 with the rest of the support services?  
	It was GSA’s intent in the CONOPS to group similar service types to the extent possible to help facilitate a combined/summary level contractor response.  The Contractor can cross reference EIT Infrastructure support in Part 1A2 if they desire.

	92
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1, pg L-6:
	It appears that Emerging Technology is included in both section 1A & 1B.  Which is the correct section to respond to these requirements?
	 The reference to Emerging Technology in 1A2 has been removed.

	93
	Past Performance
	TOR
	Section L.7.1, pg L-6: Part 1B
	PART 1B makes reference to Attachment K, Past Performance Questionnaire.  How should this attachment be completed and submitted to GSA?
	GSA is revising the TOR to delete Attachment K from Section J of the TOR

	94
	Submission
	PWS
	Section L.7.1, pg L-8
	Since the scope of Part 2 response has been expanded, will GSA increase the number of pages for the Part 2 response?
	No, GSA is not increasing the number of pages for the Part 2 response at this time. The responses to the Round 1 and Round 2 Q&A’s did not materially affect the scope of the Part 2 response.  GSA has revised Part 2 submissions instructions to remove most of the section specific PWS references to simplify the submission instructions and eliminated the requirement to submit Section 508 Compliance data as a part of the proposal submission. 

	95
	Surge Support
	PWS
	Section L.7.1, pg L-10: Part2
	"Surge Support" is part of Key Technical Services, which is referenced in PWS 5.1.  However, it is not listed in the TOR/PWS Reference section.  It has only "TOR: Sections H.7 and L.9.1.1 PWS: Sections 3 (various sub sections), 4.1, 8, 9, and 10".  Could Government clarify?
	Part 2B (table) under Management Approach referred to  surge support as  “As Needed”. The full title of Enterprise IT Infrastructure Support of as Needed Capabilities was inadvertently removed. Surge support as well as all requirements in Section 5 of the PWS should be addressed in Part 2B.


	96
	Instructions
	PWS
	Section L.8, pg L-9:
	Will table of contents, list of acronyms, transmittal letter count towards the 30 page limit for Part 1?
	No, they will not account against the 30 page limit. 

	97
	Demonstrated
 Experience
	TOR
	Section L.8.1.2.1, pg L-10
	 Is the requirement for 3 or more project performed within the last 5 years apply only to the prime or does it apply to the team as a whole?  
	GSA responded to a similar question in Round 1 Q&A.  The response to  Q.138 stated: “The team as a whole is required to submit “3 or more” examples of Demonstrated Experience.   At least one should be from the Prime contractor, performing as a prime”.

	98
	Past Performance
	TOR
	Section L.9.4, pg L-17:
	Does the requirement for 1 or more examples in the PPRIS data base apply to the prime only?  
	GSA intends to review past performance and reference checks for the Prime as well as significant subcontractors (Team members).

	99
	
	As-Is- Environment
	Section 5 Technical Environment, pg. 4
	Lists "Attachment 08, GSA IT StaDelivndards Policy", is this the same as "Attachment 8 GSA IT standards policy.pdf"  
	Yes Attachment 08 GSA IT Standards Policy is the same as the referenced Attachment 8 GSA IT standards policy.pdf.  The difference in  us of 08 vs 8 in the Attachment name” is immaterial.
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	Configuration Mgmt
	PWS
	Section 4.2 Configuration Management, pg 32
	Did the government intend to make Configuration Management a subset of Emerging Technology Integration Support in the PWS? 
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to correct the subsection.

	101
	EITSD
	PWS
	Section 3.1 GSA Enterprise IT Management System, pg 11
	Please clarify "Complete Phase 2 of the Service Catalog Requirements by building of the remaining services and implement the "gold brick" functions".  What are the "gold brick" functions?  
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to clarify the requirements under Section 3.1 GSA Enterprise IT Management System.

	102
	Lab
	PWS
	4.1.3 Enterprise IT LAB Operations and Maintenance:
	Paragraph 1 "The lab would be located at the Contractor’s site, but would be furnished with government-furnished hardware and software. ". However in PWS 4.1.3.2 Constraints "1) The Enterprise IT LAB may be located in a GSA or Contractor facility. .."   Please clarify where the lab will be located.  
	Contractor facility

	103
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section F
Page F-1
	In the TOR, numbering goes from E.7 on page E-2 to F.3 on page F-1. It appears that F.1 and F.2 are missing. 

Question: Will the Government please provide any information included in section F.1 and F.2?
	See Note (top of page) in Section F.  The sections map back to the basic ASB contract where additional information specific to GTO was required.  When not necessary, the ASB Contract section was omitted.
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	Deliverables Table
	TOR
	Section F.5
Page F-3
	On page F-3 of the TOR, in Table 2 GTO Deliverables, No. D-03 is the Quality System Plan with a Due Date of “Initial Draft 45 days AOC: final Draft 10 days after receipt of Gov. Comments.” and No D-04 is the Transition-In Plan with a due date of “Annually, within 3 months of Survey Release”.

Question: It appears the due dates of these two items were reversed. Would the Government please clarify?
	Yes, the due dates were reversed.  The reference has been corrected. 

	105
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1
Page L-6
	On page L-6 of the TOR, in Section L.7.1 Three Part Process, in Part 1.A.0 a PWS Section reference is listed for “As Needed Capabilities” in Section 1.A.1 there is a PWS Section reference for “5 (EIT Infrastructure Support of as Needed Capabilities)”. The reference is duplicated in the two sections.

Question: In which section would the Government prefer the Offeror address PWS 5?
	GSA has removed the duplication in Section L.7.1 Part 1A: GSA has deleted “4 Emerging Technology Integration.  It remains a part of 1A2.


	106
	Instructions /
Emerging Technology
	TOR
	Section L.7.1
Page L-6
	On page L-6 of the TOR, in Section L.7.1 Three Part Process,  in Part 1.A.1 a PWS Section reference is listed for “4 (Emerging Technology Integration)” in Section 1.A.2 there is a PWS Section reference for “(4 Emerging Technology)”. The reference is duplicated in the two sections.

Question: In which section would the Government prefer the Offeror address PWS 4?
	The reference to Emerging Technology in 1A2 has been removed.

	107
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1 and Section M.3.1
Page L-6 and M-2
	On page L-6 of the TOR, in Section L.7.1 Three Part Process, Part 1.A has three graded parts 1.A.0, 1.A.1 and 1.A.2. Each of these sections has PWS references for the limited CONOPS. On page M-2 of the TOR, in Section M.3.1 Part 1 – Advisory Technical Evaluation, the evaluation table shows that these sections total 50% of the evaluation score with 1.A.1 assigned 25% of the score and 1.A.2 assigned 25% of the score. Thus, 1.A.0 which covers “PWS Sections: 1 (Overview), 2 (Task Order Management), As Needed Capabilities, and 10 (Optional Services).” is not being evaluated and will not impact the score.

Question: Does the Government intend to evaluate this section? If so, what percentage of the score will the section have?
	The first row of the table in L.7.1 Part 1 is a rollup and the value assigned will be applied across the other 2 sections.

	108
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1
Page L-8
	On page L-8 of the TOR, in Section L.7.1 Three Part Process, in Part 2.A.1 the Government lists “Surge Support” as a Key Technical Service we should address but there is no corresponding TOR/PWS Reference. 

Does the Government want the Offeror to respond to section 5.1 Planned and Unplanned Contingency Support (Surge Support) or all of section 5 Enterprise IT Infrastructure Support of as Needed Capabilities?

Question: Additionally, in section 2.B.1 the Offeror is asked to respond to all of PWS 5 “EIT As Needed.” Surge Support is part of this section. Does the Government intend for the Offeror to respond to this requirement in two places?  Please clarify
	GSA is changing the reference in L.7.1 to delete “surge support” from Part 2A bullet #1.  It remains in Part 2B bullet #1.

	109
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1
Page L-8
	On page L-8 of the TOR, in Section L.7.1 Three Part Process, in Part 2.A.1 the Government lists PWS 4.1 as an item we should address. There is no section 4.1 in the PWS Document only section 4.0 which starts with subsection 4.1.1. 

Question: Would the government please clarify which PWS items from PWS 4 it intends the Offeror to respond to in section 2.A.1?
	The reference is for 4.1.1 – 4.1.3 and has been changed in the revised Table.  

	110
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.7.1
Page L-8
	On page L-8 of the TOR, in Section L.7.1 Three Part Process, in Part 2.B.1 the Government lists PWS 2 as an item we should address but Section 2.B.2 and 2.B.3 lists PWS 2.3, and 2.12 as items that should be addressed. If we address all of PWS 2 in 2.B.1 we would be duplicating our response in 2.B.2 and 2.B.3.

Question: Would the Government please clarify which sections of PWS 2 the Offeror should address in 2.B.1?
	GSA is assuming that the Contractor will provide some narrative on staffing and transition plans in the TO Management Plan. Contractor are asked not to duplicate any information that is provided in the required staffing plan templates (2.3),  in the transition plan (2.12),  or in performance requirements (2.8) itself.  The Contractor is encouraged to cross reference where appropriate.

	111
	Instructions/ Key personnel
	TOR
	Section L.9.3.2.2
Page L-17
	On page L-17 of the TOR, in Section L.9.3.2.2 Key Personnel Qualification Matrix, the Government states “All Key Personnel named are available to begin work on the start date designated in Section F.” There is no start date designated in Section F.

Question: Will the Government please provide the contract start date?  Please clarify.
	GSA is anticipating an award by the end of August.



	112
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section

M.3.2
Page M-6
	On page M-6 of the TOR in Section M.3.2 Part 2 – Down-select Evaluation of Technical and Price Proposals, in the Evaluation Table Part 2B Management Approach is shown to be 50% of the overall score but the subsections add up to 40%. If it is 50%, the total for all of Part 2 would be 110%. 

Question: Will the Government confirm that Part 2B is 40% of the overall score?
	GSA has revised the Evaluation Table so the total is 100%.

	113
	Transition
	PWS
	Section 2.12.1.1
Page 9
	On page 9 of the PWS, Section 2.12.1.1 Stabilization is blank. 

Question: Would the Government please provide any PWS language or requirements for this section? 
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to clarify Section 2.12.1 Transition-In.


	114
	LAB
	PWS
	Section 4.1.3
Page 31
	On Page 31 of the PWS, in Section 4.1.3 Enterprise IT LAB Operations and Maintenance, the Government states “The lab would be located at the Contractor’s site, but would be furnished with government-furnished hardware and software.” On page 32 of the PWS, in Section 4.1.3.2 Constraints, the Government states “The Enterprise IT LAB may be located in a GSA or Contractor facility.”

Question: Would the Government please clarify if they want the lab on a Contractor site or a Government site?
	Contractor Facility

	115
	Application Support
	PWS
	Section 10.1
Page 42
	On Page 42 of the PWS, in Section 10.1 bullet 6 states the contractor shall provide application support.  

Question: Would the Government provide the level of support required and a list of the applications the Offeror will be supporting? 
	This information is not readily available.  However, GSA will consider providing additional information at a later point.

	116
	Cloud Instructions
	PWS
	Section 10.3
Page 44
Section 3.1
Page 11
	On Page 44 of the PWS, in section 10.3 of the PWS, the Government states that as part of the transition to Cloud Services the contractor would need to upgrade the existing CA ITCM and CA NSM. These services are also listed in Section 3.1, Page 11 of the PWS.  

Question: Does the Government want a description of our approach in both sections, and should the cost be included in both areas? Please clarify.
	TOR Attachment A Section C Performance Work Statement has been revised to clarify the requirements under Section 3.1 GSA Enterprise IT Management System and 10.3 Transition to Cloud Support Services.

	117
	Instructions
	TOR
	Section L.9.2 Price Proposal Instructions; Page L-17,
	 Page L-17, says the following: “Identify all proposed subcontracts that require approval at time of award, and in accordance with FAR 52-244-2 provide all information necessary for the Offeror to obtain consent to subcontract, unless vendor provides an approved purchasing system - In support of the proposed indirect cost rates utilized in the offer…”  Does the Government mean that the vendor should provide evidence of an approved accounting system rather than purchasing system, since this statement is in support of subcontractor proposed indirect cost rates?
	This question appears to be a repeat of question # 186 of the 1st Round Q&A.  GSA’s response was references to “approved purchasing system” would be removed.  It has been. 

	118
	
	TOR
	Section B.12.1 Indirect/Material Handling Rate, Page B-4
	Page B-4, states that if no indirect/material handling rate is specified in the basic contract, none shall be applied in this task order. In the basic contract the only mention of indirect/material handling is under the T&M section (B.7.4.3), and states: “For direct materials and subcontracts for supplies and services, the Prime Contractor may include reasonable and allocable indirect costs (e.g., G&A, material handling, or subcontracting handling as applicable) to the extent they are clearly excluded from the Prime Contractor’s loaded hourly labor rates in accordance with the Prime Contractor’s usual accounting practices consistent with FAR 31.2.” Would the Government please clarify whether indirect/material handling burdens will be allowable for GTO?
	They will be allowed to the extent that they are allowed in the basic contract, specifically they will be allowed for subcontracts that are expected in support of the GTO requirement.

	119
	
	TOR
	Section L.9.1 Format for Price Proposals, Page L-15
	Page L-15, says price proposals shall be submitted in electronic form, yet the subsequent section identifies proposal tabs for use in binders. Would the Government please clarify whether the Price Proposal should be a hard copy, electronic copy, or both?
	Electronic submission has been specified in the revised TOR.  No hard copies are desired.”  References to the word “binder or tab has been removed from L.10.1 (e) and L.10.2.

	120
	
	TOR
	Section L.9.1.c, Page L-15
	Page L-15, states “The back-up documentation shall detail the labor categories to be used, labor hours proposed by category, material and equipment costs, and a total cost breakdown (to include a summary total for each cost component, e.g., labor, overhead, or G&A).” Additionally, Section L.9.2 Price Proposal Instructions, Page L-16, Paragraph 2, states “For any Time & Material CLINs the Offeror shall identify all proposed costs by cost element (direct labor, direct travel, materials, subcontract expense, and applicable indirect expenses) in accordance with its approved cost accounting system.” Since Alliant SB labor categories and reasonable rates are already established in the basic contract, could the Government please clarify whether providing ASB labor categories, hours, contract rates and applicable discounts is adequate for the price proposal detail?

	This question does not appear to be using the Revised TOR dated Feb 23, 2012 which no longer has the language referenced.







Responses from Q&A Round 1

	#
	Category
	Document
	Section/Subsection
	Question/Comment
	Response

	297
	Local Support / MAC
	PWS
	PWS 3.5.4
	How many MAC by location per Week/Month/Year?
	Additional MAC information is provided in Attachment 46 (included with this submission).
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1

 

Company 

Certifications

 

TOR

 

L.8.1.3 Page L

-

11

 

The following Company 

Certification are required by the Contractor Team.” This 

indicates all certifications are mandatory however, Section M.3.1 indicates that 

corporate certifications are only 10% of the weighted evaluation for determining 

if an offeror’s Part 1 proposal is “A

cceptable.” Will offerors whose team 

possesses one of the three certifications be found acceptable in accordance with 

M.3.1?

 

 

The criteria in M

.

3.1 will be used to rate Offeror certifications.  According to 

the scale in the TOR acceptable is not one of the

 

criteria.  A value will be 

assessed and clearly those teams that do not possess all the required 

certifications will receive a lower value.

 

The statement “only those found 

“acceptable or better has been removed from the TOR.

 

2

 

Evaluation 

Criteria

 

TOR

 

M.3.1

 

 

on page M

-

3

 

Section M.3.1

 

on page M

-

3 provides Very Good to Excellent, Good and Poor to 

Fair, as adjectival ratings however, it also states that only those found 

“Acceptable or better” will be encouraged to continue in the competition. What 

adjectiv

al ratings will determine an “Acceptable” rating?

 

 

An overall value rating as specified in Section M.3.1 will be given to each 

Part 1 offer and the offeror can make a decision whether to proceed to Part 

2 based on the assessment of their Part 1 submission.

  

Please note that 

Section M.3.1 has been revised to change “Poor to Fair” to “Fair to Poor”. 

The statement “only those found “acceptable or better has been removed 

from the TOR.

 

3

 

Instructions

 

TOR

 

L

-

6

 

On page L

-

6 of the TOR, Emerging Technology is included in two places under 

Part 1A 

-

 

Emerging Technology Integration (PWS 4.0) (Part 1A #1) and Emerging 

Technology (PWS 4.0) (Part 1A #2). 

Does

 

the

 

Government

 

intend

 

for

 

the

 

contractor

 

to

 

respond

 

separately

 

to

 

Emerging

 

Technology

 

Integration

 

under

 

Part

 

1A#1

 

and

 

to

 

Emerging

 

Technology

 

Part

 

1A#2?

 

Please clarify.

 

It was

 

GSA’s intent in the CONOPS to group similar service types to the 

extent possible to help facilitate a combined/summary level contractor 

respons

e.  

The Contractor can choose to address emerging technology 

jointly for both subsets of Part 1A or singly and cross reference.

 

4

 

Instructions

 

TOR

 

L

-

1

 

The instructions require the Submission of Electronic Funds Transfer Information.  

Please confirm this 

information is to be submitted with Part 2.

 

 

L

-

1 is a FAR 

Provision prescribed in FAR 32.1110

.  Section L instructions do 

not ask the Contractor to submit Electronic Funds Transfer Information in 

either part of the proposal response.  However this informat

ion will be 

required of the awardee.

 

5

 

Instructions

 

TOR

 

L

-

2; page L1

 

The instructions require submission of an explanation of offeror’s approach to 

completing the security plan and certification and security authorization. Please 

confirm that this 

explanation is to be submitted in Part 2

 

Yes

,

 

Offerors should submit a description of their approach to completing 

the security plan and certification and security authorization as a part of 

the Part 2 proposal submission.

  

See Section L.9.2.1.4.
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Instru

ctions

 

CONOPS

 

TOR

 

L.7.1; page L

-

6  Part 1 

Technical Submission 

Requirements Table

 

Please confirm that under part 1.A, as it relates to PWS Section 2 Task 

Management, that a limited CONOPS is required but not the Task Order 

Management Plan (D

-

01

)

 

Deliverable D

-

01 is a 

Task Order deliverable 

requirement and not a 

requirement under Part 2.

 

